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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Plaintiff
V.
CRIMINAL NO.: 1:10-CR-064
DAIMLERCHRYSLER AUTOMOTIVE
RUSSIA SAO,

Defendant.

NOTICE OF FILING OF PLEA AGREEMENT

The United States of America, by and through its counsel, the United States Department
of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section (the “Department”), hereby gives notice of the filing
of the attached plea agreement between the Department and DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia
SAOQO in the above-styled matter.

Respectfully submitted,

DENIS J. MCINERNEY
Chief, Fraud Section

/s/

John S. Darden

Assistant Chief, Fraud Section
United States Department of Justice
Criminal Division

1400 New York Ave., N.-W.
Washington, D.C. 20005

(202) 514-7023
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on March 24, 2010, the undersigned electronically filed the foregoing
document with the Clerk of the Court using CM/ECF.

/s/
John S. Darden
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U.S. Department of Justice

Criminal Division

1400 New York Avenue, N,
Fourth Floor Bond Building
Washington, D.C. 20005

March f;’_i_f 2010

Martin J. Weinstein Carl 8. Rauh

Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP Hogan & Hartson LLP

1875 K Street, N.W. 555 Thirteenth Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20006 Washington, DC 20004 5

Gary DiBianco : y
Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP W

1440 New York Avenue, N. W,

Washington, DC 20005 B8 TR

RE: United States v. DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ

Gentlemen:

1. This lettér sets forth the full and complete plea offer to your client, DaimlerChrysler
Automotive Russia SAO now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO (hereinafter “DCAR” or
“defendant™). This offer is by the Criminal Division, Fraud Section, of the U.S. Department of
Justice (hereinafier the “Department or “Fraud Section”), and thus does not bind any other division
or section of the Department of Justice or any other federal, state, or local prosecuting,
administrative, or regulatory authority. This agreement does not apply to any charges other than
those specifically mentioned herein. However, the Department will bring this agreement and the
cooperation of DCAR, its parent Daimler AG, and its direct or indirect affiliates and subsidiaries to
the attention of other authorities or other agencies, if requested. Upon receipt and execution by or
on behalf of DCAR, the executed letter will itself become the plea agreement (the “Agreement™).
The terms of the offer are as follows:

2. Charges: Pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c)(1)(C), DCAR agrees to waive its right

to grand jury indictment and its right to challenge venue in the United States District Court for the
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District of Columbia, and to plead guilty to a two-count information charging DCAR with conspiracy
to commit an offense against the United States, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371, that is, to violate the
Foreign Corrupt Practices Act (“FCPA™), as amended, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3 (Count One), and with
violating of the anti-bribery provisions of the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3 (Count Two). It is
understood that the guilt)} plea will be based on a factual admission of guilt to the offenses charged
and will be entered in accordance with Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure. An
authorized tepresentative of DCAR will admit that DCAR is in fact guilty. By virtue of a corporate

resolution dated , in the form attached to this Agreement as Attachment B, or a

substantially similar form, DCAR has authorized this plea and has empoweréd the General Counsel
of Daimler AG (“Daimler”) and/or its outside counsel — Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP, Hogan &
Hartson LLP, and Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP — to act on its behalt for purposes of
this plea. DCAR agrees that it has the full legal right, power, and authority to enter into and perform
all of its obligations under this Agreement, and it agrees to abide by all terms and obligations of this
Agreement as described herein. The “Statement of the Offense™ attached to this Agreement as
Attachment A is a fair and accurate description of the facts the Department believes, and DCAR
accepts, can be proved beyond a reasonable doubt and through admissible evidence regarding
defendant's actions and involvement in the offense. DCAR is pleading guilty because it is guilty of
the charges contained in the accompanying Information and admits and accepts responsibility for the
conduct described in the Statement of the Offense. Prior to the Rule 11 plea hearing, defendant,
through counsel, will adopt and sign the Statement of the Offense as a written proffer of evidence

by the United States.
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3. Potential penalties, assessments, and restitution: The statutory maximum sentence

that the Court can impose for a violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371, is a fine of
$500,000 or twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever is greatest, 18
U.S.C. §§ 3571(c)(3) and (d); five years’ probation, 18 U.S.C § 3561(c)(1); and a mandatory special
assessment of $400, 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)}2)(B). The statutory maximum sentence that the Court can
impose for each violation of Title 15, United States Code, Section 78dd-3, is a fine of $2,000,000,
15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3(e), or twice the gross gain or gross loss resulting from the offense, whichever
is greatest, 18 U.S.C. § 3571(d); five years’ probation, 18 U.S.C § 3561(c)(1); and a mandatory
special assessment of $400, 18 U.S.C. § 3013(a)(2)(B). The statutory maximum sentences for
multiple counts can be aggregated and run éonsecutively. Restitution obligations, ifany, are satisfied

in light of the Judgment being entered in the companion case of U.S. Securities and Exchange

Commission v. Daimler AG and that probation is not necessary in light of DCAR’s acceptance and

acknowledgment of the monitorship provisions in the deferred prosecution agreement entered into
simultaneously herewith by the Department and Daimler, DCAR’s parent.

4, Federal Sentencing Guidelines: The parties agree that pursuant to United States

v. Booker, 543 U.S. 220 (2005), the Court must determine an advisory sentencing guideline range
pursuant to the United States Sentencing Guidelines (“USSG”or “Sentencing Guidelines™). The
Court will then determine a reasonable sentence within the statutory range after considering the
advisory sentencing guideline range and the factors listed in 18 U.S.C. § 3553(a). The parties agree
that for purposes of determining an advisory sentencing guideliﬁe range, the 2006 Sentencing

Guidelines apply as follows:
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(a)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Base Offense. Based upon USSG § 2C1.1, the total offense level is 34,
calculated as follows:

(a)(2) Base Offense Level 12

(b)(1) Specific Offense Characteristic
(More than one bribe) +2

(b)(2) Specitic Offense Characteristic
(Value of Benefit Received > $7,000,000
and < $20,000,000 based on
transactions with U.S. nexus, taking
the greater of the corrupt payment or the
benefit received for each transaction pursuant
to USSG § 2C1.1, comment. (n. 3)) +20

TOTAL 34
Base Fine. Based upon USSG § 8C2.4(a)(1), the base fine is $28,500,000
(fine corresponding to the Base Offense level as provided in Offense Level

Table).

Culpability Score. Based upon USSG § 8C2.5, the culpability score is 6,
calculated as follows:

{a)  Base Culpability Score 5

(b)(3) The organization had 200 or more
employees and tolerance of the
offense by substantial authority personnel
was pervasive throughout the organization +3

(g)  The organization fully cooperated in
"~ investigation and clearly demonstrated

recognition and affirmative acceptance of
responsibility for its criminal conduct -2

TOTAL ' 6

Calculation of Fine Range:

Base Fine $28,500,000
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Multipliers 1.2(min)/2.40(max)
Fine Range $34,200,000 /
$68,400,000

The parties agree that the offenses of conviction should be grouped together for purposes of
sentencing pursuant to USSG § 3D1.2.

5. Penalties and Assessments: Pursuant to Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(c}(1)(C), the

Department and the defendant agree that DCAR shall pair a monetary penalty of $27,360,000, and
a special assessment of $800. This monetary penalty represents a 20% reduction below the bottom
of the Sentencing Guidelines range. The Department and the defendant agrec that this is the
appropriate sentence in the case, after consideration of: (a) the Sentencing Guidelines; (b) the
payment of monetary penalties and/or disgorgement in other related criminal and civil proceedings
in the U.S. by DCAR’s parent, Daimler, and its affiliates, Daimler Export and Trade Finance GmbH
and DaimlerChrysler China Ltd.; (c) DCAR’s acknowledgment of and inclusion in Daimler AG’s
substantial compliance and rerﬁediation efforts and rehabilitation, as outlined in the Department’s
Sentencing Memorandum; and (d) the factors set forthin [8 U.S.C. § 3553(a). The parties agree and
stipulate that the factors mentioned above and described in the Department’s Sentencing
Memorandum represent mitigating circumstances “of a kind, or to a degree, not adequately taken
into consideration by the United States Sentencing Commission.” 18 U.S.C. § 3553(b)(1). This
$27,360,000 monetary penalty and the $800 special assessment shall be paid to the Clerk of Court,
United States District Court for the District of Columbia, within ten (10) days of sentencing. The
parties agree that this $27,360,000 penalty shall be offset against the $93,600,000 monetary penalty

being paid by Daimler as part of its deferred prosecution agreement entered into simullaneously
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herewith, in accordance with the terms of Daimler’s agreement. DCAR acknowledges that no tax
deduction may be sought in connection with payment of any part of its $27,360,000 monetary
penalty or any part of Daimler’s $93,600,000 payment allocable to DCAR.

6. Courtis Not Bound: Defendantunderstands that, if the Court rejects this Agreement,

the Court must: (a) inform the parties that the Court rejects the Agreement; (b) advise the
* defendant’s counsel that the Court is not required to follow the Agreement and afford the defendant
the opportunity to withdraw its plea; and (c) advise the defendant that if the plea is not withdrawn,
the Court may dispose of the case less favﬁrably toward the defendant than the Agreement
contemplated. The defendant further understands that if the Court refuses to accept any provision
of this Agreement, neither party shall be bound by the provisions of the Agreement.

7. Waiver of Rights: Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f) and Federal Rule of

Evidence 410 limit the admissibility of statements made in the course of plea proceedings or plea
discussions in both civil and criminal proceedings, if the guilty plea is later withdrawn. The
defendant expressly warrants that it has discussed these rules with its counsel and understands them.
Solely to the extent set forth below, the defendant voluntarily waives and gives up the rights
enumerated in Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11(f) and Federal Rule of Evidence 410.
Specifically, the deféndant understands and agrees that any statements that it makes in the course of
its guilty plea or in connection with this plea Agreement are admissible against it for any purpose
in any U.S. federal criminal proceeding 1f, even though the Department has fulfilled all of its
obligations under this Agreement and the Cour: has imposed the agreed-upon sentence, DCAR
nevertheless withdraws its guilty plea.

The parties further agree, with the permission of the Court, to waive the requirement for a
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pre-sentence report pursuant to Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32(c)(1)(A), based on a finding
by the Court that the record contains information sufficient to enable the Court to meaningfully
exercise its sentenéing power. The parties agree, however, that in the event the Court orders the
preparation of a pre-sentence report prior to sentencing, such order will not affect the Agreement set
forth herein.

The parties further agree to ask the Court’s permission to combine the entry of the plea and
sentencing into one proceeding. However, the parties agree that in the event the Court orders that
the entry of the guilty plea and sentencing hearing occur at separate proceedings, such an order will
not affect the Agreement set forth herein.

If the Court orders a pre-sentence investigation report or a separate sentencing date, the

patties agree to waive the time requirements for disclosure ot and objections to the pre-sentence
investigation report under Fed. R. Crim. P. 32(e), so as to accommodate a sentencing hearing prior
to the date that would otherwise apply. At the time of the plea hearing, the parties will suggest
mutually agrecable and convenient dates for the sentencing hearing with adequate time for (a) any
objections to the pre-sentence report, and (b) consideration by the Court of the pre-sentence report
and the parties’ sentencing submissions.
8. Press Releases: The defendant agrees that if it or any of its direct or indirect affiliates
or subsidiaries issues a press release in connection with this Agreement, DCAR shall first consult
the Department to determine whether (a) the text of the release is true‘ and accurate with respect to
matters between the Department and DCAR; and (b) the Department has no objection to the release.

Statements at any press conference concerning this matter shall be consistent with this press release.
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9. Sales, Mergers or Transfers: Except as may otherwise be agreed by the parties

hereto in connection with a particular transaction, the defendant agrees that in the event it sells,
merges or transfers all or substantially all of its business operations, or all or substantially all of one
of its individual operating divisions and businesses, as they exist as of the date of this Agreement,
whether such sale(s) is/are structured as a stock or asset sale, merger, or transfer, DCAR shall
include in any such contract for sale, merger or transfer, a provision fully binding the purchaser(s)
or any successor(s) in interest thereto to the obligations described in this Agreement. In considering
requests forexemption from or modifications of this requirement, the Department agrees to consider
in good faith DCAR’s compliance history with respect to the business, and all other relevant facts
and circumstances including the need for and cost of compliance with this provision.

10. Continuing Cooperation: DCAR shall: (a) plead guilty as set forth in this

Agreement; (b) abide by all sentencing stipulations contained in this Agreement; (¢) appear, through
its duly appointed representatives, as ordered for all court appearances and obey any other ongoing
court order in this matter; (d} commit no further state or federal offense; (¢) be truthful at all times
with the Court; (f) pay thé applicable fine and special assessment; and (g) conﬁﬁue to cooperate fully
with the Department and the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. At the request of the
Departinent, and consistent with applicable law and regulation, the defendant shall also cooperate
fully with such other domestic or foreign law enforcement agencies, as well as the Multilateral
Development Banks (“MDBs”), in any investigation of the defendant, or any of its present and
former employees, agents, consultants, contractors, subcontractors, and subsidiaries, or any other
party, in any and all matters relating to improper payments, related false books and records, and

inadequate internal controls, and in such manner as the parties may agree. DCAR shall truthfully
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disclose all non-privileged information with respéct to the activities of DCAR and its subsidiaries
or affiliates, its present and former employees, agents, consultants, contractors, and subcontractors,
concerning all matters relating to improper payments in connection with their operations, related
false books and records, or inadequate internal controls about which DCAR has any knowledge and
_ about which the Department, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissién, or, at the request of the
Department, any mutually agreed upon other foreign or domestic law enforcement authorities and
agencies, shall inquire. This obligation of truthfuldisclosure includes the obligation, consistent with
applipable law or regulation including labor, data protection, and privacy laws, to provide, upon
request, any non-privileged document, record, or other tangible evidence in the custody and control
of DCAR relating to such improper payments, false books and records, and inadequate internal
controls about which the aforementioned authorities and agencies shall inquire of DCAR, subject
to the direction of the Department and the agreement of the parties where appropriate. In addition,
with respect to any issue relevant to the Department’s investigation of corrupt payments or related
false books and records and inadequate internal controls in connection with the operations of DCAR,
or any of its present or former subsidiaries or affiliates, DCAR shall use its best efforts to make
available for interviews or testimony, as requested by the Department, present or former employees,
agents, and consultants of DCAR, as well as directors, officers, employees, agents, and conéultants
- of contractors and subcontractors. All such requests for information shall be made through Daimler,
unless the parties otherwise agree. Nothing m this Agreement shall be construed to require DCAR
to conduct any further investigation other than as necessary to identify and produce relevant non-

privileged documents, records or other tangible evidence within the custody and control of DCAR.
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11, Remediation: DCAR acknowledges and accepts that it will be monitored by a
corporate compliance monitor (the “Monitor”) pursuant to the terms of Daimler’s deferred
prosecution agreement entered into simultaneously herewith.

12. Department Concessions: In exchange for the defendant's guilty plea, the guilty

plea entered by Daimler Export and Trade Finance GmbH, the entry into deferred prosecution
agreements by Daimler and DaimlerChrysler China Ltd., and the complete fulfillment of all of the
defendant’s obligations under this Agreement, the Department agrees not to use any information
related to the conduct described in the accompanying Iﬁformation and Statement of the Offense, or
related to any other conduct disclosed to the Department prior to the date of this Agreement, against
the defendant or any of its present or former subsidiaries or affiliates in aﬁy criminal case except in
. aprosecution for perjury or obstruction of justice, in a prosecution for making a false statement after
the date of this Agreement, or in a prosecution or other proceeding relating to any crime of violence.
In addition, the Department agrees that it will not bring any criminal charge against the defendant,
or any of'its present or former subsidiaries or affiliates for conduct that: (i) arises from or relates in
any way to the conduct of the defendant or its present and former employees, consultants, and agents
described in the accompanying Information and Statement of the Offense or the Informations and
Statements of the Offense accompanying the plea of Daimler Export and Trade Finance GmbH and
the deferred prosecution agreements of Daimler and DaimlerChrysler China Ltd.; or (ii) arises from
or relates in any way to information disclosed by the defendant to the Department prior to the date
ofthis Agreement, or related to undisclosed, unknown conduct of a similar scale and nature that took
place prior to the date of this Agreement. This paragraph does not provide any protection against
prosecution for any corrupt payments, false books and records, or circumvention of internal controls,

if any, made in the future by the defendant, or any of its employees, agents, or consultants, whether
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or not disclosed by the defendant pursuant to the terms of this Agreement. This Agreement will not
close or preclude the investigation or prosecution of any natural persons, including any current or
former employees, stockholders, consultants, or agents of the defendant, of its present or future direct
or indirect affiliates or of its present or future subsidiaries who may have been involved in any of the
matters set forth in the accompanying Statement of the Offense or in any other matters. Finally, the
Department agrees that it will file a Sentencing Memorandum in support of the proposed agreed-
upon sentence that will include a description of: (a) relevant facts; (b) the nature of the offenses; and
(¢) Daimler’s (and DCAR’s) cooperation, compliance, and remediation measures.

13. ~ Full Disclosure/Reservation of Rishts: In the event the Court directs the

preparation of a pre-sentence report, the Department will fully inform the preparer of the pre-
sentence report and the Court of the facts and law related 1o the defendant’s case. Except as set forth
in this Agreement, the parties reserve all other rights to make sentencing recommendations and to
respond to motions and arguments by the opposition.

14. Waiver of Appeal Rights: The defendant knowingly, intelligently, and voluntarily

waives its right to appeal the conviction in this case. The defendant similarly knowingly,
intelligently, and voluntarily waives its right to appeal the sentence imposed by the Court, provided
such sentence is consistent with the terms of this Agreement. Ther defendant waives all defenses
based on the statute of limitations and venue with respect to any prosecution that is not time-barred
on the date this Agreement is signed in the event that: (a) the conviction is later vacated for any
reason; (b) the defendant violates this Agreement; or (¢) the plea is later withdrawn. The Department
is free to take any position on appeal or any other post-judgment matter.

15. Breach of Agreement: The defendant agrees that if it fails to comply with any of the

provisions of this Agreement, makes false or misleading statements before the Court, commits any
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further state or federal offense, or attempts to withdraw the plea after sentencing even though the
Department has fulfilled all of its obligations under this Agreement and the Court has imposed the
sentence (and only the sentence) provided in this Agreement, the Department will have the right to
characterize such conduct as a breach of this Agreement. In the event of such a breach, (a) the
Department will be free from its obligations under the Agreement and may take whatever position
it believes appropriate as to the sentence (for example, should the defendant commit any conduct
after the date of this Agreement —examples of which include, but are not limited to, obstruction of
justice and false statements to law enforcement agents, the probation office, or the Court — the
Department is free under this Agreement to seek an increase in the sentence based on that post-
agreement conduct); (b) the defendant will not have the right to withdraw the guilty plea; (¢) the
defendant shall be fully subject to criminal prosecution for any other crimes which it has committed
or might commit, if any, including perjury and obstruction of justice; and (d) the Department will
be free to use against the defendant, directly and indirectly, in any criminal or civil proceeding any
of the information or materials provided by the defendant pursuant to this Agreement, as well as the
admitted Statement of the Offense.

In the event of such breach, any such prosecutions of the defendant not time-barred by the
applicable statute of limitations on the date of the signing of this Agreement may be commenced
against the defendant in accordance with this paragraph, notwithstanding the running of the
applicable statute of limitations in the interval between now and the commencement of such
prosecutions. The defendant knowingly and voluntarily agrees to waive any and all defenses based

on the statute of limitations for any prosecutions commenced pursuant to the provisions of this

paragraph.
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In the event that the Department determines that DCAR has breached this Agreement, and
prior to instituting any prosecution resulting from such breach, the Department agrees to provide
DCAR with written notice of such breach, to which DCAR shall, within thirty (30) days, have the
opportunity to respond to the Department in writing to explain the nature and circumstances of such
breach, as well as the actions DCAR has taken to address and remediate the situation, which

explanation the Departiment shall consider in determining whether to institute any prosecution.
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16. Complete Agreement: Noagreements, promises, understandings, or representations

have been made by the parties or their counsel other than those contained in writing herein, Nor will
any such agreements, promises, understandings, or representations be made unless committed to
writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant’s counsel, and an attorney for the U.S.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section. Ifthe foregoing terms and conditions are
satisfactory, DCAR may indicate its assent by signiﬁg the Agreement in the space indicated below
and returning the original once it has been signed by DCAR and its counsel.

AGREED:

FOR DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAO,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ :

S/

Dr. Gero He , General Counsel
Daimler AG

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

Carl S. Rauh
Hogan & Hartson LLP

Gary DiBianco
Skadden Arps Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

14
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16. Complete Agreement: Noagreements, promises, understandings, or representations
have been made by the partics or their counsel other than those contained in writing herein. Nor will
any such agreements, promises, understandings, or representaticns be made unless commilied 1o
writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant’s coupsel, and an atlorney for the ULS.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section. [fthe foregoing terms and conditions arc
satisfactory, DCAR may indicate ils assonl by signing the Agreement in the space indicated below
and retuming the original opee it has been signed by DCAR and its counsel.

AGREED:

FOR DaimlerChrysler Antomotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ :

By:
Dr. Gero Herrmann, Generzl Counsel
Daimler AG

/=

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

Carl 8. Rauh
Ilogan & Hartson LLP

CGary DiBianco
Skadden Armps Slate Meagher & Flom LIP

14
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16. Complete Agreement: No agreements, promises, understandings, or representations

have been made by the parties or their counsel other than those contained in writing herein. Nor will
any such agreements, promises, understandings, or representations be made unless committed to
writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant’s counsel, and an attorney for the U.S.
Department of Justice, Criminal Division, Fraud Section. If the foregoing terms and conditions are
satisfactory, DCAR may indicate its assent by signing the Agreement in the space indicated below
and returning the original once it has been signed by DCAR and its counsel.

AGREED:

FOR DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQO

By:
Dr. Gero Herrmann, General Counsel
Daimler AG

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

K/;fb/ A A,
Carl S. Ravh

Hogan & Hargson LLP '
Gt Vi
i

Gary DiBiziydo |
Skadden Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

14
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FOR THE DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE:

' By:

DENIS J. MCINERNEY
Chief, Fraud Section

W 6; \':jj /Z/ﬁf"é_ﬂ_fﬂ/

Mark F. Mendelsohn
Deputy Chief, Fraud Section

1

\J\ D
John S.‘..\*Darden
Assistant Chief, Fraud Section

United States Department of Justice
Criminal Division

1400 New York Ave., N.W.
Washington, D.C. 20005

(202) 514-7023

Washington, D.C., on this 27 Uiday of March, 2010.

15
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GENERAL COUNSEL’S CERTIFICATE

T have read this Agreement and carefully reviewed every part of it with outside counsel for
DPaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAO, now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ (“DCAR™).
I understand the terms of this Agreemeﬁt and voluntarily agree, on behalf of DCAR, to each of its
terms. Before signing this Agreement, I consulted with outside counsel for DCAR, Counsel fuily
advised me of the rights of DCAR, of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions,
and of the consequences of entesing into this Agreement.

1 have carefislly reviewed the terms of this Agreement with the General Director of DCAR.
I have advised, and caused outside counsel for DCAR to advise, the General Director fully of the
rights of DCAR, of possible defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and of the
consequences of entering into the Agteement.

No promiscs or inducements have been made other than those contained in this Agreement.
Furthermore, no one has threatened or forced me, or to my knowledge any person authorizing this
Apgreement on behalf of DCAR, in any way to enter into this Agreement. [ am alse satisfied with
outside counsels’ representation in this matter. I certify that I am the General Counsel of Daimler
AG and that I have been duly authorized by DCAR to execute this Agreemcnt on behalf of DCAR.
Date: , 2010

DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ

S /e

Dr. Gero Hbrrmann, General Counsel
Daimler A
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

Weare coupscl for DaimlerChrysler Automonve Russia SAQ, now known ag Mercedes-Benx
Russia SAO (“DCAR™), and Daimler AG (“Daimler™) in the matter covered by this Agreement. In
connection with such representation, we have examined refevant Datmler and DCAR documents and
have discussed the terma of'this Agreement with the DCAR General Dircctor, Based on our review
of the foregoing materials and discussions, we are of the opinion that: the representative of DCAR
has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of DCAR and that this Agrecment
has been duly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered on behalf of DCAR and is a valid and
binding abligaton of DCAR. Futther, we have carefully reviewed the terms of this Agreement with
the General Director of DCAR. We have fully advised him of the rights of DCAR, of possible
defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines® provisions, and of the conscquences of entering into this
Agreement, To our knowledge, the decision of DCAR w0 ¢nter into this Agreement, based on the

authorization of the General Director, is an informed and voluntary one,

Date: 2010 ///// a

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkic Farr & Gallagher LLIP

Carl 5. Rauh
Hogan & 1lartson LLP

Gary DiBianco
Skadden Arps Slate Meagheot & Flom LLP

Counsel for Daimler AG and
DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQ,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAOD
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CERTIFICATE OF COUNSEL

Weare counsel for DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAO, now known as Mercedes-Benz
Russia SAO (“DCAR”), and Daimler AG (“Daimler”) in the matter covered by this Agreement. In
connection with such representation, we have examined relevant Daimler and DCAR documents and
have discussed the terms of this Agreement with the DCAR General Director. Based on our review
of the foregoing materials and discussions, we are of the opinion that: the representative of DCAR
has been duly authorized to enter into this Agreement on behalf of DCAR and that this Agrcement
has been duly and validly authorized, executed, and delivered on behalf of DCAR and is a valid and
binding obligation of DCAR. Further, we have carefully reviewed the terms of this Agreement with
the General Director of DCAR. We have fully advised him of the rights of DCAR, of possible
defenses, of the Sentencing Guidelines’ provisions, and of the consequences of entering into this
Agreement. To our knowledge, the decision of DCAR to enter into this Agreement, based on the

authorization of the General Director, is an informed and voluntary one.

Date: , 2010

Martin J. Weinstein
Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP

oy
L z,cf/ ,a.éf Kgﬁﬂ’wﬁm

Carl S. Rauh
Hogan & Hagtson L&I; K\SA\
D1B1 nco

Ska en AI;ES Slate Meagher & Flom LLP

Counsel for Daimler AG and
DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAQO,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE DISTRICT OF COLUMBIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, : Criminal No.

Plaintiff, . ~ Conspiracy
18 U.S.C. § 371

Y.
: Foreign Corrupt Practices Act
DAIMLERCHRYSLER AUTOMOTIVE : 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3 and
RUSSIAN SAO, : 18U.8.C.§2
Defendant.
STATEMENT OF OFFENSE

The United States and Defendant DAIMLERCHRYSLER AUTOMOTIVE RUSSIA SAO
r(“DCAR”) agree that the following facts are true and correct:
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS
1. Daimler AG, formerly DaimlerChrysler AG and Daimler Benz AG (collecti\.fely
*Daimler”), was a German vehicle manufacturing company with business operations throughout the
world. Among other things, Daimler sold all manner of cars, trucks, vans, and buses, including
Unimogs, heavy duty all terrain trucks primarily used for hauling, and Actros, large commercial
tractor/trailer-style vehicles. Daimler was a major global producer of premium passenger cars, as
well as the largest manufacturer of commercial vehicles in the world. As a result of its luxury car
and commercial vehicles lines, Daimler had among its customers government and state-owned
entities from many countries in which it does business. Daimler sold its products worldwide, had

production facilities on five continents, did business in many foreign countries, and employed more

than 270,000 people.
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2. DCAR, now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAQ, was a Moscow-based, wholly-
owned subsidiary of Daimler. DCAR sold Daimler spare parts, assisted with the sale of vehicles
from various Daimler divisions in Germany, in particular its overseas sales division (“DCOS”) to
government customers in the Russian Federation (“Russia’™), and also imported Daimler passenger
and commercial vehicles into Russia for sale to customers and distributors. DCAR, a foreign
corporation, is a “person,” as that term is used in the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C. §
78dd-3(f)(1).

3. The Russian Ministry of Internal Affairs, known by its initials in Russian as “MVD,”
was a department and agency of the Russian government principally responsible for policing, militia,
immigration, and other functions. The Russian traffic police fell under the supervision of the MVD.

4, | The Special Purpose Garage (“SPG”) was an “instrumentality” of the Russian
government, and individuals employed by the SPG were “foreign officials,” as those terms are used
in the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3(H)(2)(A).

5. Machinoimport was a Russian government-owned and controlled purchasing agent
for the city of Moscow. Machinoimport was an “instrumentality” of the Russian government, and
individuals employed by Machinoimport were “foreign officials,” as those terms are used in the
FCPA, 15 U.S.C. § 78dd-3(DH(2)(A).

6. Dorinvest was a Russian government-owned and controlled purchasing agent for the
city of Moscow. Dorinvest was an “instrumentality” of the Russian government, and individuals
employed by Dorinvest were “foreign officials,” as those terms are used in the FCPA, 15 U.S.C. §

78dd-3(H(2)(A).
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7. Daimler sold passenger cars and commercial vehicles directly from its headquarters
in Stuttgart, Germany, to its Russian government clients with the assistance of DCAR and Daimler’s
representative office in Moscow. Daimler carried out such sales from DCOS with DCAR acling as
an agent to assist with such direct sales. DCAR and Daimler sold passenger cars, commercial
vehicles, and Unimogs in Russia.

8. Daimler’s business in Russia was substantial. DCAR and Daimler’s government
customers in Russia included the MVD, the SPG, the Russian military, the city'uf Moscow, the City
of Ufa, and the City of Novi Urengoi, among others.

BACKGROUND REGARDING DCAR’S BRIBERY

9. Daimler, through DCAR, made improper payments at the request of Russian
government officials or their degignees in order to secure business from Russian government
customers. Payments of this nature were made with the knowledge and involvement of the former
senior management of DCAR and DCOS.

10.  DCAR and Daimler sometimes made improper payments to government officials in
Russia to secure business by over-invoicing the customer and paying the excess amount back to the
government officials, or to other designated third parties that provided no legitimate services to
Daimler or DCAR, with the understanding that such payments would be passed on, in whole or in
part, to Russian government officials. When payments were made to third parties, the payments
were recorded on one of at least nine Daimler debtor accounts.

11. These overpaymenis were maintained as reserves on Daimler’s books and records m
certain internal debtor accounts, including debtor accounts that were identified by the name of the

government customer with which Daimler and DCAR did business. When requested, Daimler
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employees wired and authorized the wiring of payments from Daimler’s bank accounts in Germany
to, among other destinations, U.S. and Latvian bank accounts beneficially owned by shell companies
with the understanding that the money, in whole or in part, was for the benefit of Russian
government officials.

12. A former senior member of DCAR’s Government Sales and Passenger Car Sales
departments (the “DCAR Government Sales Executive™) authorized these ﬁay‘ments to Russian
government officials and designated third parties via Daimler’s debtor accounts, which payments
were intended to induce passenger vehicle sales to Russian government customers. Daimler and
DCAR employees often directed the payments to Russian officials into these officials’ Latvian bank
accounts that were nominally held in the name of shell companies, some of which were U.S.-
registered corporations.

| 13, Daimler and DCAR employees also made and authorized the making of cash
payments to Russian government officials employed at Russian government customers, or their
designees, in order to induce Unimog sales to several Russian government municipalities.

14.  Daimler and DCAR recorded the improper payments to Russian government officials
or their designees in their books and records as “commissions,” “special discounts,” and “N A.,”
which translates to “useful payment” or “necessary payment,” and was understood by certain

employees to mean “official bribe.”
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THE CRIMINAL CONDUCT
15.  DCAR and others, known and unknown, took the following action:
Overall Sales

a. Overall, between 2000 and 2005, Daimler’s vehicle sales in Russia, consisting
of sales of passenger vehicles, commercial vehicles, and Unimogs, totaled approximately €1.4
billion, of which approximately 5% or €64,660,000 was derived from the sale of vehicles to Russian
government customers. In connection with these vehicle sales, DCAR and Daimler made over €3
million in improper payments to Russian government officials employed at their Russian
governmental customers, their designees, or to third-party shell companies that provided no
legitimate services to Daimler or DCAR with the understanding that the funds would be passed on,
in whole or in part, to Russian gdvemmcnt officials.

Passenger Car Sales

b. DCAR employees acted as liaisons to Russian government customers,
including the MVD, which included the Russian traffic police. The MVD and the SPG were
Daimler’s principal Russian government customers for passenger cars between 2000 and 2005.
Daimler made improper payments to Russian officials employed at its Russian government
customers directly and through agents and third-party shell companies in order to secure contracts
to sell passenger cars.

c. In total, Daimler and DCAR made approximately €2,866,281 in payments to
23 different parties that Were recorded on the debtor accounts used in connection with sales of

passenger cars to the SPG, at least €1.4 million of which was used to pay bribes directly to Russian
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government ofﬁcials with the SPG or was used to pay third parties with the understanding that such
payments would be passed omn, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials with the SPG.

d. In addition, Daimler and DCAR made approximately€3 .Bmillioninpayments
to third parties that were recorded on the debtor accounts used in connection wjth sales of passenger
cars to the MVD, at least €1.8 million of which, in whole or in part, was used to pay bribes to
Russian government officials with the MVD or was used to pay third parties with the understanding
that such payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials with
the MVD.

e. Daimler and DCAR made payments to MVD consultants with the knowledge
that those payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials or their
designees in their efforts to obtain and retain business from the Russian MVD.

Commercial Vehicle Sales

f. Between 2000 and 2005, Daimler sold commercial vehicles directly to
government customers in Russia from its Commercial Vehicles Division in Germany, with the
assistance of DCAR in areas such as contract negbtiations, pricing, and the drafting of contracts.
The two primary Russian government purchasers of Daimler’s commercial vehicles were
Machinoimport and Dorinvest, both of which were Russian government purchasing agents for the
city of Moscow,

g. Between 2000 and 2005, Daimler made improper payments to Russian
government officials employed by state-owned customers and to third-party shell companies in order
to secure contracts to sell commercial vehicles to those customers. As with passenger car sales, the

improper payments were sometimes derived by inflating the purchase price of the vehicles and
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paying the excess amount back to employees of Daimler’s Russian governmental customers directly
or indirectly through third-party shell companies. Some of these price differentials or “inclusions™
were improperly recorded in Daimler’s bocks and records as “service reserves,” although certain
Daimler and DCAR employees understood that these price surchargés were intended fo be paid as -
bribes to Russian government officials or their designees.

h. Between 2000 and 2005, Daimler and DCAR made at least 12 improper
payments totaling approximately €388,724 to seven different third parties in connection with the sale
of commercial vehicles to Russian government customers, including improper payments to an
individual with close ties to the Russian government with the understanding that the payments would
be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials in connection with Daimler’s sale
of commercial vehicles.

Unimog Sales

i. Daimler sold Unimogs directly from its Unimog division in Germany to its
government customers in Russia. Because of import restrictions, most Unimogs were sold to
Russian government purchasing agents, including Dorinvest and Machinoimport.

j- Between 2000 and December 2005, Daimler sold 57 Unimogs to Russian
customers, approximately 0% of which were sold to government entities, totaling approximately
€17.89 million in sales. Thirty rUnimogs were sold to the city of Moscow and its various
subdivisions. Other Russian government purchasers included the Russian military, the city of Ufa,
and the city of Novi Urengoi.

k. Daimler and DCAR made approximately €433,000 in improper payments to

government officials in Russia directly and indirectly through third-party shell companies in order
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to secure contracts to sell Unimogs to Daimler’s Russian government customers. Daimler made
these improper payments in cash and through crédits maintained in the company’s omnibus credit
accounts. Daimler generated reserve funds for the improper payments by issuing invoices to its
government cusfomer with prices that included only a partial discount. Daimler ultimately applied
a larger discount and maintained the difference as a credit in Daimler’s books and records. These
funds were then withdrawn and paid to the government officials through shell companies.

OVERT ACTS

16.  More specifically, DCAR or at least one of its co-conspirators committed or caused
to be committed, within the territory of the United States and elsewhere, the following acts, among
others:

Improper Payments In Connection With
The Sale Of Passenger Vehicles To The SPG

a. Between in or about February 2001 and March 2005, DCAR and Daimler
made 29 payments totaling approximately €928,023 to the Deutsche Bank account in Stutlgart,
Germany, of a Russian gevernment official at the SPG (the “SPG Official”) in connection with
Daimler’s sale of Mercedes Benz passenger cars to the SPG.

b. In or about April 2003, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of €139,800 from
Daimler’s account in Germany, to Berwick Commercial LLC, a corporation registered in Delaware,
with the understanding that the payment would be passed on, in whole orin part, to the SPG Official.

C. Between in or about September 2001 and February 2002, DCAR and Daimler

made five payments totaling approximately €313,050 from Daimler’s account in Germany to
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Kongress Food Ltd., a corporation with an address in Dublin, Ireland, with the understanding that
the payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

d. Between in or about February 2004 and January 2005, DCAR and Daimler
made six payments totaling approximately €306,356 from Daimler’s account in Germany to Delight
Commercial, Ltd., a corporation with an address in the Seychelles, with the understanding that the
payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

e. Between in or about January 2003 and May 2003, DCAR and Daimler made
three payments totaling approximately €305,400 from Daimler’s account in Germany to Pyrmont
Alliance Corp., a corporation with an address in the Bahamas, with the understanding that the
payments would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the SPG Official.

f. In or about January 2005, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of €99,682
from Daimler’s account in Germany to Loretti LLP, a corporation with an address in the United
Kingdom, with the understanding that the payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to the
SPG Official.

g In or about 2005, DCAR and Daiﬁﬂer entered into a retroactive commission
agreement with an individual introduced to Daimler by an employee of the SPG as someone with
close ties to the Russian g';)vernment whom Daimler could use as an agent through which to make
payments to Russian government officials in exchange for assistance in securing business with the
SPG.

h. In addition to the payments to the SPG Official, and the entities described
above, between in or about July 2001 and November 2005, DCAR and Daimlér made payments

totaling approximately €384,619 to at least 11 other shell companies that did not perform services



Case 1:10-cr-00064-RJL Document 3-1 Filed 03/24/10 Page 30 of 43

for Daimler sufficient to justify the payments with the understanding that these payments would be
passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government officials in exchange for assistance in securing
business with the SPG.

Improper Payments In Connection With
The Sale of Passenger Vehicles To The Russian MVD

1. | Between in or about August 2000 and November 2002, DCAR and Daimler
made 22 payments totaling approximately €785,225 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a Bank
of America account in San Diego, California, for Sittard Investments, a California corporation, to
secure passenger car sales to the Moscow traffic police.

3- Similarly, between in or about January 2003 and June 2004, DCAR and
Daimler made 13 payments totaling approximately €728,302 from Daimler’s account in Germany
to a bank account in Latvia for Novitta Ltd., a Delaware corporation, in connection with passenger
car sales to the MVD,

k. Between in or about January 2005 and May 2005, DCAR and Daimler made
five payments totaling approximately €402,876 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a bank
account in Latvia for Tower Block Ventures, a U.K. corporation, for the benefit of a consultant to
the MVD in connection with passenger car sales to the MVD.

1. ‘Between in or about September 2004 and December 2004, DCAR and
Daimler made three payments totaling approximately €235,200 from Daimler’s accountin Germany
to a bank account in Latvia for Silvarado Ltd., a corporation that provided no legitimate services for

Daimler or DCAR, in connection with passenger car sales to the MVD.

10
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m, Between in or about May 2003 and August 2003, DCAR and Daimler made
four payments totaling approximately €189,291 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a bank
account in Latvia for Capital Alliance Corp., a Florida corporation, in connection with passenger car
sales to the MVD and to the Russian military.

Improper Payments In Connection With
The Sale Of Commercial Vehicles

n. In 2004, DCAR and Daimler made three payments totaling approximately
€58,000 from Daimler’s account in Germany to Technoforex, a Delaware corporation, to secure the
sale of one commercial vehicle to the SPG for approximately €357,814.

Impropcer Payments In Connection With
The Sale of Unimogs

Dorinvest

0. DCAR and Daimler agreed to make commission payments to two senior
members of Dorinvest (the “Dorinvest Officials™), both Russian government officials, of
approximately €7,343 and €2,447, respectively, in order to secure the August 2001 sale ofa Unimog
to the city of Moscow.

q. In early 2002, in connection with the sale of seven Unimogs to the city of
Moscow, Daimler wired a payment of approximately $7,000 to the bank account of relatives of one
of the Dorinvest Officials who were living in Jerusalem, Israel.

r. In or about November 2001, DCAR and Daimler also made a payment from
Daimler’s account in Germany of approximately €34,427 to Contrex, a Cyprus corporation

established for the benefit of the wife of one of the Dorinvest Officials.

11



Case 1:10-cr-00064-RJL Document 3-1 Filed 03/24/10 Page 32 of 43

Machinoimport

s. On or about January 24, 2001, a Daimler employee made a payment of
approximately DM15,000 from Daimler’s account in Germany to the Latvian bank account of
Fidelity Finance Corporation, a Delaware corporation, in connection with the sale of four Unimogs
to Gormost, a department within the city of Moscow responsible for bridges and tunnels, with the
understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian government
officials in order to secute this sale.

t. On or about May 28, 2001, Daimler made a payment of approximately
€30,072.62, also from Daimler’s account in Germany, to Fidelity Finance Corporation’s Latvian
bank account with the understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to
Russian government officials in connection with an additional sale of Unimogs.

Russian Military

u. On or about July 15, 2003, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €5,478.09 from Daimler’s account in Germany to the Latvia bank account of Forfun
Co.,a Delaware corporation, in connection with the sale of one Unimog to the Russian military, with
the understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to Russian military
officials.

v. On or about January 31, 2002, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €19,488 from Daimler’s account in Germany to the Swiss bank account of Northcote
Holdings, a Costa Rican corporation, in connection with the sale of another Unimog to the Russian
military, with the understanding that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to

Russian military officials.

12
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City of Ufa

w. On or about March 19, 2001, April 24, 2001, and June 19, 2001, DCAR and
Daimler made payments totaling approximately DM55,030 from Daimler’s account in Germany to
an official with the Department of Communal Ec_onomy and Town Improvements for the City of
Ufa, a Russian municipal government official, as well as.another unidentified individual, in
connection with the sale of seven Unimogs to the City of Ufa.

X. In or about February 2001, DCAR and Daimler paid an additional
DM9,191.34 commission fo this unidentified individual, as well as another person, in connection
with the City of Ufa’s purchase of an eighth Unimog.
City of Novi Urengoi

y. On or about March 19, 2002, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €7,635 from Daimler’s account in Germany to a senior municipal government official
with the City of Novi Urengoi in connection with the sale of a Unimog to the City of Novi Urengot.

z. On or about July 17, 2002, DCAR and Daimler made a payment of
approximately €26,650 to the bank account of Crofton Allianz, a Delaware corporation, in
connection with the sale of a segond Unimog to the City of Novi Urengoi, with the understanding
that such payment would be passed on, in whole or in part, to a Russian government official.

aa. In or about September 2002, a Daimler employee made a separate €4,441.64

payment in cash to the same Russian government official.

13
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DEFENDANT’S ACCEPTANCE

I have read this Statement of Offense. Pursvant to Fed. R, Crim. P. 11, and on behalf of
DaimlerChrysler Autometive Russia SAQ, now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO, Tacceptand
acknowledge responsibility for the acts of DaimletChrysler Automotive Russia SAO’s employees,
agents, and consultants, and I admit that the evidence supporting the Statement of Offense
establishes that DaimnlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAO is guilty of the offenses to which it is

pleading guilty.

Date; 22.0% w0

/

For DaimlerChrysler Automotive Russia SAO,
now known as Mercedes-Benz Russia SAO
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SHAREHOLDER'S RESOLUTION
OF.
MERCEDES-BENZ RUSSIA S.A.O.

Daimler AG

with its registered seat in Stuttgart (local court
of Stuttgart, HRB 19360) (the "Shareholder"),
represented by Dr. Wolfgang Herb and
Dr. Peter Herz, who are authorized to repi‘esent
the Sharcholder jointly,

is the sole Shareholder of
Mercedes-Benz Rassia S.A.0.

registered under the laws of the Russian Fed-
eration with the state principal registration
number 1027700258530 (OGRN) having its
registered address at 125167 Moscow, Russia,
39a Leningradskiy Prospect (the "Company™).
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States Department of Justice, Criminal Divi-
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ing its investigation of the Company under the

U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, 15 U.S.C.
§§ 78dd-1 et seq. (as amended, the "FCPA").

In order to resolve such matters, it is proposed
that the Company enter into a certain agree-
ment with the DQJ whereby the Company shall
plead guilty to certain crimes (the "Plea
Agreement"). )
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The Shareholder's General Counsel, Gerd T.
Becht, together with investigative and outside
counsel for the Shareholder and the Company,
have advised the general director of the Com-
pany of its rights, possible defenses, the Sen-
tencing Guidelines’ provisions, and the conse-
quences of entering into such agreement with
the DO,

1L Shareholder's Resolution

The Sharcholder adopts the following reso-
Iution: ‘ '

1. The Shareholder agrees that the Company

(i) accepts and acknowledges the two-
count [nformation charging the
Company Wwith conspiracy to commit
an offensc against the United States,
namely, to violate the anti-bribery
provisions of the FCPA (Count One),
and violating the anti-bribery provi-
sions of FCPA, 15 US.C. § 78dd-3
and 18 U.S.C. § 2 (Count Two),

(i)  waives indictment on such charges;

(iii} enters into the Plea Agreecment with
the DOJ; and ‘

(iv) agrees to accept a monetary penalty
against MB Russia of $27,360,000,
and to pay $27,360,000 to the United
States Treasury with respect to the
conduct described in the Information
and Statemnent of the Offense.

181938.16-Frankfurt Server 1A
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sagonoe CIA u §2 Pasnena 18
Ceona 3akoHoe CLUA  (pTopoi

TyHKT); )

(ii} orkazanocs ot  TpebopaHHA O
BBIHECEHHH ofpHIMaNEHOrO
COBHHMTEILHOTO akTa,

(iii) sawnoumno ¢ JHO Cormamenne o
TIpH3HAHHA BUHEL,

(iv) B30 Ha cebd wrpad B OTHOIEHHM
MB Poccus B pasmepe 27 360000
gomn. CIHA s enmrarane 27 360 000
nomn. CHIA Kasuageiicrsy CUHIA B
CBAZH ¢ ACHCTBHAMH, ONHCAHHBIMM B
Hundopmagpn u  DOOpMyTHPORKE

MSW - Drait January 22, 2009 - 4:52 PM
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2. The Shareholder hereby grants its consent
to the issuance of a power of attorney by
the general director of the Company sub-
stantially in the form as attached hereto as
Annex.

No further resolutions are adopted.

In case of coﬁﬂict of interpretation of this reso-
lution, the English version shall take priority.

Stuttgart, this

For the Shareholder

oOBHHEHHA,

2. AKUNHOHCP HACTOALWHM JAAcT CBOS
COrNacHe Ha BHAAYY JOBEPEHHOCTH
reHepalbHLM  aupektopoM  Obmectsa,
CYLIECTBEHHO N0 (opme, NpHRedeHHOH B
IpRaoikesdd K HACTOMIIEMY PENIEHHIO,

Bonee HuKakHX pemieHH# AKUHOHEPOM HE
NPHHUMANOCE,

B cnywae nporHBopeuMiA B TOJIKOBAHWM
HACTOAINEr0 PEWICHNA NPEeHMYIGECTREHHYIO
CHIIy MMEST €ro pejakiiid Ha aHPIHHCKOM
A3BIKES.

r. lilryTrapr, nara

Or vmenn AxngoHepa

A *

V V Dr, Wolfgang Herb

F81938.16-Frankfurt Server LA

V Dr. Peter I-ﬁa

MSW - Draft Jamuary 22, 2009 - 4:52 PM
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Annex
POWER OF ATTORNEY

Closed Joint Stock Company Mercedes Benz Russia, registered on September 27, 2002, by Administra-
tion of the Ministry for Taxes and Levies of the Russian Federation for the City of Moscow, with state
principal registration number 1027700258530, located at: 39A, Leningradskiy Prospekt, Moscow,
125167, (the “Company™) represented by [...], born on {...}, acting on the basis of the Company's Char-
ter and Resolution, dated [...}, who is authorized to represent the Company singly, hereby grants power
of attorney to [...}, [...], [...}, each an employee of Daimler AG, with its registered address at: Mer-
cedesstrasse 137, 70327 Stuttgart, Germany (the “Attorneys-in-fact™), each of them singly, to represent -
the Company in any respect regarding the settlement with the United States Department of Justice (the
"DOJY") in connection with its investigation into Daimler AG, with its registered seat in Stuttgart, regis-
tered with the commercial register of the local court of Stuttgart under HRB 19360, the shareholder of
the Company, its subsidiaries and it¢ affiliates. The Attornevs-in-fact are in partlcular, without limitation,
authorized to in the Company's name and on the Company's behalf enter into and ‘execute a plea agree-
ment with the DOJ with such changes as the Attorney-in-fact may approve. The Attorneys-in-fact are
authorized to represent the Company generally within the scope of this power of attorney, ie. to do eve-
rything in its name and on its behalf, take any and all actions as may be necessary or appropriate and to
execute, approve and amend the forms, terms or provisions of any agreement or other document as may
be necessary or appropriate to carry out and effectuate the purpose and intent of the foregoing,

Thls power of attorney is subject to Russnan law.
Authontles conferred by this power of attorney may be delegated to other persons.

This power of attorney is valid for one year.

Signature:

181938, 1 6-Frankfurt Server 1A - MSW - Draft January 22, 2009- 4:52 PM
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: Iiplmo:-xenne
JOBEPEHHOCTh

3axpertoe  AxunonepHoe OOmecrso "Mepcenec-benny PYC", 3apermcrpuposannoe Hucneximed -
Muuuctepersa | PoccHiickoli  ®efiepaunn+ o nanoram u  cbopam M7 no  Ueurpanssomy
IMHHUCTPATHBHOMY OKpyry r. Mockesl, 27 cenrafpx 2002 roaa; 3a OCHOBHBIM TOCYA3PCTBEHHBIM

. peTHCTpaloHHBIM HoMepoM 1027700258530, pacnonomennoe no ampecy: 123167 ropoa Mocksa,
Heuuurpa,ucmﬁ mpochekt, i. 39A (nanee “O6mecrso”), B juue [...1[...] roma poxnerus,
Aefictylomero #a ocHoBamkH Ycrasa OGmectsa u Ilporokona or [...], W ymonmomoweHHslid
eJHHOIMYHO NpeJCTaRNATh HHTepeck OGulecTsa, HacTosmuM gosepser [...],[...], KAKABIN ABAMOMICA
coTpyaHukoM koMnanud "Maiimnep AI", pacnonoxennoit no anpecy: Tepmanus, 70327 r. iliryrrapr,
Mepcenecurtpace, 137 (nanee “NoBepensnie AMAA™), KAKIOMY H3 HHX B OTAECABHOCTH, MPEACTARNATL
HHTCPEChI OGLHOGTBa 1m0 BCEM BOIIPOCAM MHUDOEOTCO COrTalmeHNA B OBSISH ¢ NpOBEACHHBIM B
Henapramerire wocruuan CHIA (manec "JFO™) paccrienoBaHiem mesTenbHOCTH axuMonepa Obuiectsa -
xomranuy "Mafimnep Al ¢ wecronaxoxkpenwem B r. [lItyrrapre, I'epManus, 3aperHcTphpOBanHO B
' KOMMEpHECKOM peecTpe MecTHOro cypa r. lltyrrapra 3a nomepom HRB 19360, ce nouepumx kommanmi
v addunupoBannbIX ML, JOBEpeHHbe JIHIA YIIONHOMOMKBAIOTCS, B YACTHOCTH, Gea orpaHiennii, ot
HMMCHH H 1O nopy4erHic ObmecTsa 3aKII0uATs U NOANHCATs COrANIeHye 0 npu3nanuy Bansl ¢ IO ¢
HIMEHEHRAMH, KOTOPEIE OHM MOFYT yTBepaAMTE, -JlOBepeHHbie JHLA YNIONTHOMOZEHE B LIENOM
NMPEACTABNNTL HHTepeck OGLIECTEBA B PAMKAX HACTOSHIEH IOBEPEHHOCTH, T.€. COBCPIIATE OT ero HMEHH
mobsie HeoOXoAUMBIe M Leiecoo0pasHble ASHCTBHA H HOANMCHIBATD, YTBOPKIATE H HIMEHATL GopMY,
YCNOBHA H FIONOMEHHA HOBLIX COrTATIEHHT W WHBIX IOKYMEHTOB, KOTOPHIE MOTYT GHTH Heoﬁxo,uHMMMn
UITH BENecOO0PasHBIMH INA JOCTHACHHS BHIICH3I0NKEHHBIX Lesel H HAMEPeHHH.

Hacroaman JosepennocTs perynupyercs 3akoHoaareiscTeoM Poccutickoif deaepanun.
[TomHoMOuHA, BRITAHHLIE HacToAwel JloBepeHHOCTEI0, MOTYT GHITh epedanbl APYTHM JIHLAM.

Cpox peficTeug nactosweif HopepeHHocTH | rof ¢ MOMEHTS BhIIAYM.

[Tonnuce”

181938.16-Frankfurt Server A MSW - Draft January 22, 2009 - 4:52 BM
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LOBEPEHHOCTE
I"opox Mocksa, AEaANATE BOCEMOTO JeKadps Jine THICHYH NEBXTOTO PO,

Jakperroe  axumonepnoe ofmecrso "Mepeenec-bemn PYC", VHH 7707016368,
mecroraxoknerne: 125167 r. Mockga, Jlewunrpagtiud upochekT, LL3%A, 3aperncIpUpoBadHoe
TocynaperBenBrM yupexneanem MockoBekas peraeTpatuonias tanata 01 asrycra 1994 roma 3a
Ne P-4777.17.7, ocHOoBHOH TOCYHApCIBEHHHH pErvCTpanBoHEEN Homep 1027700258530,
CrEAETENRCTRO O BHECEHHW 3THCH B FXRHBHD YOGYIApCTBEHHEBUL pecerp IOPHANUCCKUX AR
cepust 77 No 005424692 or 27 cemrabps 2002 roma, B mmie ['cHeparbHOro HEpEXTOpa
rp. Depmamun KOprema 3ayspa, mara poxuenms 12 womnx 1956 roma, smsa cepus M-VI
No 1562396, prutana 30 anpens 2009 r. ®MC Poceun, epox zefictsrs ¢ 05 masz 2000 r. o 05 Mas
2010 r., x nactopry Ne 698729560, srrman Bypromecrpou I Trofunres, OPT, 06 zroms 2007 r.,
saperucTpuporagroro B PO mo agpecy: 125167, ropom Mockea, Jlemwrrpanckefi mpocmexT,
E.39A, peficTeyromiero Ha OCHOBaRER Y orasa ObimecTea v Pewenus or 20 wong 2004 roaa,

HaG‘I‘O.SIEEKEH ,Z[OB&}JGHHOC-TLIO YHO}TI-IOMOIIPIBEI.GT

J-pa T'epo Xeppmanna, macnopr Ne 320933019, sriman 02 mona 2007 r. Mopreif Topoaa
Mronsurcxadera-ua-Peline / reﬂepanmm xoHCyNseTBOM . Can-llayny,

J:pa Tomaca Auwrenfaxa, macnopr Ne 507718291, nuinau 01 oxrabps 2004 r. Mopuelt
ropoAa Miomsxaiima-ta-Pype,

u Jl-pa Boisdranra Xepda, nacnopr Ne CRIMWVCAG, reimas 19 jexabps 2007 r. Mopueit
ropoja - QPuuprepiitaiia (Kmxmpi mws Hax — pafoTHmk Xomuamme "Malimmep A", ¢
3APETHCTPHPOBAHEEM aipecoM: [epmanns, 70327 r. Hiryrrapt, Mepcenecurpace 137 (namee -
“Mopepennbie nuna’™),

KOKAOMY H3 HHX B OTJEHBHOCTM, B UENIX 3aKIIOYEHHA ¥ NONNHCAHHS CONIAIUSHHS O
npusHaEmMK Bueel ¢ Jenapramenrom roctanun CIIA (anee - "JIO™), paspeiiinTh BeE BOIPOCH
o poromMoMy JIIO pacerenoranmio aestensHocty OfmecTra.

Horepermbie JHIa YIORHOMOYHBAIOTCS, B HacTHOCTH, 0e3 orpanm¥enyi, oT ®WMEEW # IO
nopydennto OOIecTss NMPHHATE corialleHde o TPWIHARFM BHHEM oF HMeHw Obmecrsa m
BHICTYNIATE B Cyle © 9Tof Hémbio. J{oBepeHurie NUNa yHONHOMOYEHB! B TETOM IPEACTABIATE
nHTepecs] (OIecTsa B paMKax HACTONIIEH XOBEPEHHOCTH, TO GCTH COBEPHIATH OT &ro ¥MCHH
mobsre EeobXOIIMEIE i TeNecoobpasable HCHCTEHA M HOAMCHBAT,, YIDEpKAaTs H H3MCHATH
HOPMY,. YCITOBHA W TOOKECHIA JHOBHX COTTHANICHN B WHEIX HOKYMEHTOB, KOTOPBIC MOTYT ORITE
He00XOMBIMA ITH Lenecoo0pasabIMy A7 JOCTIDKEHHS BRIISH3N0RCHHEX neell i mamMeperi.

TTonsoMOwHA, DPEHOCTABICHHEBIC HACTOAINEH ,ZIQBepeHHOCTBIo MOTyT OBEIb  LEPSUAHB]
APYIHM JIHLAM.

JIOBEPEHHOCTL BEIIAHA ¢ HPAaBoM FepeoBepHsl, CPOKOM [0 TPIFIIAThL Neps
AE€ THICHTIE JAECATOr0 ToAa (BKIFOYHTEIBHO).

Tenepanbuetif peKTOp o B e
3A0 "Mepcenec-Fenu PYC'___JUELEEN SAUEE.

F'opon Mocksa, Poceniickas @exepaies
JlBaiuars BOCEMOE G AEKA0ps ABE THICTIH AeBATONO roid.

Hactosias XoBepeHHOCTE yaocTonepena My, Naesmosoit Qnnroil Cepreesnoi, sotapaycoM ropoja Mockesr.

HosepennocTs coRepiliesa 0T  HMEHHM 3akpEITOTO akupoHeprsoro obmecTsa ' «Mepeegec-Berry PYCs  ero
Penepansapin mppextopoM rp. Fepmarss K)presom 3ayapoy, HOAIHCABIIEM €6 B MO&M HPHCYTCTBHY.

Hpasocrocobrects  3akphiToro  axuuonepmore obmectea  «Mepcepec-Bennr PYC» n  ODONHOMOYRA  ero
IPSECTABHTENA TipoBepernl. JIMYHOCT, TOANMCABIIero TOBEPEHBOCTE YCTAHOBICHA, HeecmocofHocTh IPOBEpera,

3?1 KOHTOPE!
HpOCTIeRT, 1.3%A
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POWER OF ATTORNEY
The City of Moscow, the twenty eighth day of December two thousand and nine

Closed Joint Stock Company Mereedes-Benz RUS, Individual Taxpayer Number
7767016368, location: 125167, Moscow, Leningradsky prospect, 39A, registered by Moscow
Registration Chamber on August 1, 1994 under No P-4777.17.7, Principal State Registration
Number 1027700258530, Certificate of registration entry to Unified State Register of Legal
Entities Series 77 No 005424692 of September 27, 2002, represented by General Director,
citizen of Germany Jiirgen Saner, born on July 12, 1956, visa Series M-VI No 1562396 issued
on April 30, 200% by the Federal Migration Service of the Russian Federation, effective from
May 5, 2009 through May 5, 2010, to passport No 698729560 issued by Burghenmaster of
Tiibingen, Federal Republic of Germany, on June 6, 2007, registered in the Russian Federation at
the address; 125167, Moscow, Leningradsky prospect, 394, acting by viriue of the Articles of
Association of the Company and Resolution of July 20, 2004,

by the present Power of Attorney appoints:

D, Gero Herrmann, passport No 320933019, issued on July 2, 2007 by the town-council of
Ludwigshafen am Rhein / Consulate General of Szo Paolo,

Dr. Thomas Altenbach, passport No 507718291, issued on Octaber 1, 2004 hy the town-council
of Miilhein an der Ruhr,

and Dr. Wolfgang Herb, passport No C8SMWVC4G, issued on December 19, 2007 by the
town-council of Filderstadt (each of them being the employee of Daimler AG with the registered
address: Germany, 70327, Stuttgart, Mercedesstrasse, 137 (hereinafler referred to as the
Attorneys),

each of them separately in order to conclude and sign the plea bargaining agreement with the US
Department of Justice (hereinafter referred to as the DOJ), settle all issues refated to
investigation carried out by DOJ with respect to the Company activities,

The Attorneys are authorized, inter alia, without limitations, on behalf of the Company to accept
the plea bargaining agreement on behalf of the Company and appear before the court for this
purpose. The Attorneys are authorized in general to represent the interests of the Company
within the framework of the present Power of Attorney, ie. fo do or execute on behaif of the
Company any necessary and feasible acts and to sign, approve and amend form, terms and
provisions of any agreements and other documents which may be necessary or feasible for the
above aims and intentions.

The authorities vested by the present Power of Aftorney may be granted to any third party.

The present Power of Attorney and substitution shall be valid untii the 31st of December, 2010
(inclusive).

General Director
CISC Mercedes-Beny, RUS sionature

City of Moscow, Russian Federation
‘This 28ih day of 1december, two thonsand and ninc.

The present Pawer of Altorney is certified by me, Davydova Olga Serpeyevna, Notary Public ofthe City of Moseow,

The present Power of Atlomey is exearded on behalf” of Closed Joint Stock Company Mercedes-Benz RUS by its General
Director, Jiirgen Saner, citizen of Germany, who signed it before me,

The legal eapacity of Closed Joint Stock Company Mercedes-Benz RUS and powers of its representative were checked and
verified. The identity of the person which signed the present Power of Attornsy was estblished, fegal capacity checked and
verified.

Registered in the Register uader No 3-3143
State due have been paid in the amount of 750 rubles + 1100 rubles for technical services

Certified outside the premises of the notary’s olfice

al the address: Moscow, Leningradsky prospect, 39A
Nolary Public fsignciture!

Seal: Notary Public of the City of Moscow Davydova 0.5,
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Texer fanmoro ZoKYMEIITA PRI C PYCCKOro 43bIka Ha anluHCKIH 31K MepeBoInK
' Kpyrnux Buramui l'paropsesny

Fopor Mecksa, Tpigiaroro jekalpn Ape THICHH ICBSITONG 04,

A, Bepracoea lanura Vsanosna, HotapHyce ropoia MOCKBLL, cRHIETENLETBYIO
HOJUTHHHOCTE NOJUIMCH, CAenariol nepepogunkom Kpyrimukom Butanuenm [paropresiiem B

MOCM HpHCYTCTREH, JIHTMII0CTL CT0 YoTaHoBIEHA,

r = 73 ,‘.Aj 3 ?
3aperneTPEPGBAHO B peecTpe 3a N 0 - Yo

Bantexano mo tapudgy: 300 pyéreir.

Hotapnye. R Bepracosa .H.
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